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          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ: Good afternoon and

          3  welcome to this hearing of the State and Federal

          4  Legislation Committee.

          5                 I am Maria Baez, Chair of the

          6  Committee.  Today we have a very full agenda.  We

          7  have seven SLRs on the agenda supporting several

          8  pension proposals, most of which relate to programs

          9  already supported by the Council in the past.

         10                 SLR 53 was adopted by the Council

         11  last year and would establish a 20-year retirement

         12  program, similar to that offered police, for

         13  District Attorney Investigators.

         14                 SLR 91 would include Housing

         15  Authority Officers and School Safety Guards in a

         16  25-year retirement program created last year

         17  pursuant to a Council SLR that was supposed to cover

         18  all of these special officers, but inadvertently

         19  omitted these agencies.

         20                 SLR 96 would require employees who

         21  have been kept as provisional employees for 24

         22  months or more to receive certain rights such as

         23  grievance procedures that are enjoyed by permanent

         24  employees.  This SLR was also adopted last year.

         25                 We also have a Preconsidered SLR
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          2  concerning the 25 year/age 50 retirement program for

          3  automotive service workers that was created last

          4  year pursuant to a Council home rule.  This bill

          5  would provide three-quarters pay for Deputy Sheriffs

          6  who go out on disability.  Another Preconsidered

          7  Reso. Would create a presumption for EMTs and

          8  paramedics that if they developed heart problems,

          9  the condition was job-related stress.

         10                 Finally, we have a Preconsidered SLR

         11  that would essentially allow firefighters and police

         12  officers who stay on the force beyond 20 years to

         13  bank the variable supplement payments that they

         14  would have gotten had they retired, and collect

         15  these retroactive payments when they do retire.  We

         16  discussed an earlier version of this bill at our

         17  April hearing on the various Police/Fire retention

         18  proposals.

         19                 And we have a Preconsidered SLR that

         20  would provide that Corrections Officers would no

         21  longer have to pay into their plan after 20 years.

         22                 We also have several Mayor's messages

         23  to consider today.  The first two are Preconsidered

         24  Messages supporting an extension of the City's

         25  authority to make certain types of short term
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          2  investments, as well as the City's authority to

          3  select underwriters for bond issues by negotiated

          4  acquisition.

          5                 One of the most important Mayor's

          6  Messages is the Preconsidered Message supporting the

          7  Mayor' Omnibus Revenue Package.  This package will

          8  enable the City to obtain the revenue we were

          9  relying on from the State to help us close our

         10  budget gap. The Components of the Revenue Package

         11  are as follows:

         12                 1.  Decoupling, which saves the City

         13  $112 million. These provisions would authorize the

         14  City to decouple its business tax lawsuit from newly

         15  enacted federal depreciation deductions that allow

         16  businesses to take increased depreciation deductions

         17  for certain property they acquire in the wake of

         18  September 11th.  If we do not decouple our City tax

         19  definitions of income from the federal definition

         20  for purposes of these large deductions, the City

         21  stands to lose about $112 million in revenue in

         22  Fiscal 2003.  However, the proposed legislation

         23  allows taxpayers acquiring property in the downtown

         24  New York Liberty Zone and the resurgence Zone to

         25  take advantage of the deductions for purposes of
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          2  their City taxes.

          3                 2.  Debt Reform, which saves us $110

          4  million.  These provisions would change the laws

          5  with regard to debt issued by the City.  This

          6  component of the legislation includes provisions

          7  that would generally allow the City to issue debt

          8  for longer terms for certain capital projects, allow

          9  the City to take additional advantage of the use of

         10  variable interest rate debt, authorized the issuance

         11  of debt for costs associated with the closure of the

         12  Fresh Kills landfill, and authorize the Housing

         13  Development Corporation to purchase mortgage loans

         14  made by the City.

         15                 3.  Cigarette tax, which should yield

         16  $133 million a year in revenue.  This component

         17  authorizes the City to increase its Cigarette tax

         18  from 8 cents per pack to $1.50 per pack with a

         19  stipulation that the City will give the State 46.5

         20  percent of the money in the first year and 46

         21  percent after that.

         22                 4.  An increase in parking fines,

         23  which should result in $62 million a year in

         24  increased fine revenue.  This would authorize an

         25  increase in parking fines for stopping and standing
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          2  from $50 to $100.

          3                 5.  A 65 central increase in E- 911

          4  Surcharges on land lines, which should net the City

          5  $35 million.  This would authorize the City to

          6  increase its enhanced Emergency 911 surcharge from

          7  35 cents to one dollar for every land line.

          8                 6.  Authority to impose a 30 central

          9  Cell Phone Surcharge for wireless E- 911 systems

         10  which should generate $9 million in revenue.

         11                 In addition, the bill contains some

         12  changes to the way in which Telecommunications

         13  companies are taxed, and changes to the State

         14  Education Law that recognize the new teacher

         15  contract for purposes of the State Law requirements

         16  concerning disciplinary actions against teachers.

         17                 Finally, and importantly for us, the

         18  bill contains a section that the Council requested,

         19  which would cap the increase in the class share for

         20  property tax purposes at 2 percent, rather than the

         21  current State Law cap of 5 percent, which would

         22  result in a significant increase in the average

         23  class one property owner's tax bill.  We will hold

         24  off hearing testimony on this until we have a two-

         25  house bill.
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          2                 We are also considering a

          3  Preconsidered Mayor's Message that would allow the

          4  City to pay for the Cost of Living Increase awarded

          5  to City pensioners last year over a period of 10,

          6  rather than 5 years.  This would save the City $277

          7  million in fiscal 2003.

          8                 We are also considering a number of

          9  other Mayor's Messages including MM181, supporting a

         10  bill that would ease the requirements for the

         11  Relocation and Employee Assistance Program, or REAP,

         12  which provides tax credits to businesses that move,

         13  but remain in parts of the City other than

         14  Manhattan's Business Districts.

         15                 MM182 would give the City the

         16  authority to put 25 additional red light cameras at

         17  intersections throughout the City.           A

         18  Preconsidered Mayor's Message would give the Parks

         19  Department the authority to enforced parks

         20  violations in Battery Park City and in lands owned

         21  by the Hudson River Park Trust along the Hudson.

         22                 Another Preconsidered Mayor's

         23  Message, called the Taxpayer Assistance Act,

         24  includes provisions that would ease mailing rules

         25  for tax filings, and give the Department of Finance
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          2  more flexibility in compromising tax debts owed to

          3  the City and in vacating tax warrants.

          4                 Finally, we will consider a

          5  Preconsidered Mayor's Message that will give certain

          6  NYCERS members and Board of Education Retirement

          7  system members who participate in the early

          8  retirement program, an additional two months of

          9  service credit, up to one year total, for every year

         10  they have served.

         11                 Finally, we have five in- rems or

         12  SLRs supporting legislation, which would authorize

         13  the return of property that has been taken by the

         14  City for non- payment of taxes to be returned to the

         15  former owner if the back taxes are paid.

         16                 Last, but certainly not least, I am

         17  happy to announce that a bill drafted by the Speaker

         18  and myself and a number of my colleagues, has just

         19  been introduced in the Assembly.  This is the bill

         20  that would provide accidental death benefits to

         21  domestic partners of members of all five of the

         22  City's pension plans, if the member dies in the line

         23  of duty.  It would treat domestic partners like

         24  surviving spouses for purposes of this benefit.

         25                 Many of you remember the hearing on
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          2  the Garumba Bill before the Committee several weeks

          3  ago.  At that time, I and many of my colleagues were

          4  very upset that this would give the domestic partner

          5  of one firefighter an accidental death benefit that

          6  the law excludes all other domestic partners from

          7  receiving.  I promised at that hearing that we would

          8  have legislation introduced to change the law.

          9  Today, that has happened and we are voting a

         10  Preconsidered SLR to support that legislation.  I

         11  would like to thank Speaker Miller, my colleagues,

         12  Margarita Lopez, Christmas Quinn and Phil Reed, who

         13  have worked so hard with me over the last few weeks

         14  to make this possible.  I would also like to thank

         15  the Mayor's Office for working with us on the draft

         16  of this legislation.  After the bumpy start we had

         17  at the April hearing, it was heartening and

         18  gratifying that we could work together on this. I

         19  urge my colleagues here today who all voted to give

         20  firefighter Garumba's Domestic Partner a death

         21  benefit, to do the same for all future domestic

         22  partners who find themselves in the same tragic

         23  situation.

         24                 I will first ask if there are any

         25  objections to the five in- rems.  Then, I will call
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          2  the Administration to testify on all the Mayor's

          3  Messages, except the revenue package we're holding

          4  off on, and make any comments that they would like

          5  to make on the SLRs.  I will then ask the City's

          6  Actuary to briefly address the pension SLRs on which

          7  he would like to comment.  I would then like to take

          8  anyone else who wishes to be heard, but ask that

          9  each speaker please limit their comments to two

         10  minutes.

         11                 Wow, thank you.

         12                 Are there any objections to the in-

         13  rems?  Before we proceed, I would like to introduce

         14  my colleagues, from my left we have Council Member

         15  Sears, Council Member Addabbo, Council Member

         16  McMahon, Council Member Brewer, Council Member

         17  Dilan, Council Member Fidler, Council Member Golden,

         18  Council Member Weprin, Council Member Quinn, my

         19  Legal Counsel, Jim Caras, where is Cheetz?

         20                 MR. TRAMONTANO:  Right here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Frank Tramontano,

         22  Cheetz.  Okay, anyone here from Administration?

         23  Commissioner, okay.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  My name is

         25  James F. Hanley, H A- N- L- E- Y, I'm the
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          2  Commissioner of Labor Relations for the City of New

          3  York.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  SILVERLDATT:  Pamela Silverldatt, First Deputy

          6  Commissioner of Labor Relations.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  I guess,

          8  perhaps in the interest of saving time in a broad

          9  brush approach, we, the City of New York, negotiated

         10  a settlement and spent some time over the last two

         11  months with the MLC, the Municipal Labor Committee,

         12  the umbrella organization representing all of the

         13  unions in the City of New York.  And in that

         14  exercise, in that effort, we agreed to support

         15  jointly, and the unions are behind me and they will

         16  so testify, but we agreed that in return for the

         17  union support of the City bill, which is the pension

         18  bill, I guess, S.7740, the pension COLA bill, in

         19  return for their support on the bill, we had agreed

         20  as a result of the give and take of collective

         21  bargaining to support a few of their bills.  Simply

         22  put, the police and fire variable supplement bill,

         23  which is Assembly 10373- A, we would support that

         24  bill, which is the variable supplement which is a

         25  defined benefit actually, although it is labeled
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          2  variable supplement fund, that you can start banking

          3  that after you have retirement time and though you

          4  continue to work.

          5                 In addition to that there was a bill,

          6  and I must I say I didn't catch the number, there

          7  was a bill on Chapter 96, an early retirement, if

          8  you will, 55/65 that you would get an additional

          9  credit, which you made reference to before.  We

         10  would support that bill as well.

         11                 I would suggest though equally as

         12  important, not only do we oppose the other bills,

         13  but I think it is extraordinarily important to point

         14  out that is a Memorandum of Understanding that was

         15  signed, initialed by myself and Randy Weingarten as

         16  the Chair of the MLC, on behalf of all of the

         17  members of the MLC.  And part of that agreement was

         18  that there would be no other union pension bills

         19  that unions would be seeking to put a greater strain

         20  on our budget.   There was a quick pro quo, there

         21  was an understanding, and I certainly would expect

         22  that all of the unions behind me would reinforce

         23  that, because we just had that commitment across the

         24  table yesterday, and there was a handshake between

         25  myself and Randy Weingarten and initialed them.    So
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          2  those are the bills we do support.  We're opposed to

          3  the other bills, they add an additional burden on

          4  our coffers and all of the unions in recognition of

          5  the situation that we are in right now agreed to

          6  support our bill, we agreed to support their bills,

          7  and in return, part of that agreement was that there

          8  would be no further bills, no further union bills

          9  pushed by the union.  So I think that is important.

         10                 I would like to add that a copy of

         11  that initial Memorandum of Understanding between the

         12  City of New York And the MLC, I believe has been

         13  forwarded to the City Council.  I would be happy to

         14  give you a copy today, if you would like another

         15  copy to take a look at it.  We're in the process of

         16  finalizing the signatures, but it was memorialized

         17  yesterday, and initialed by myself and Randy

         18  Weingarten, on behalf of every union in the City of

         19  New York.

         20                 I have nothing further.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Nothing further,

         22  Commissioner? Okay.  Does any of my colleagues have

         23  any questions for the Commissioner?  Okay, no, thank

         24  you, Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Anyone else from

          3  the Administration?  We're now going to hear from

          4  the Department of Finance, please identify yourself

          5  for the record?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

          7  Good afternoon, Chairperson and members of the

          8  Committee.  My name is Israel Schupper.  I'm

          9  Associate Commissioner for Tax Policy for the New

         10  York City Department of Finance.  And with me today

         11  are Ellen Hoffman, who is the Director of Legal

         12  Affairs at the Department of Finance; and Michael

         13  Hyman, who is the Director of Tax Policy Research in

         14  my office.

         15                 Thank you for giving me the

         16  opportunity, Mr, Chairperson, for giving me the

         17  opportunity to testify on behalf of Mayor Bloomberg

         18  and Finance Commissioner Stark in favor of Assembly

         19  3823- A, commonly known as the Taxpayers' Assistance

         20  Bill.  This legislation is supported by the New York

         21  State Bar Association, the New York City Bar

         22  Association, and the New York State CPA Society.

         23                 The bill is revenue neutral and it

         24  would make it easier for City residents to conduct

         25  business with the Department of Finance.  Under its
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          2  provisions, finance would allow New Yorkers to mail

          3  tax payments and returns using an approved private

          4  mail delivery service, such as Federal Express or

          5  UPS, in addition to the US Mail.  Currently, finance

          6  does not recognize the mailing date posted by

          7  private mail services for purposes of meeting a tax

          8  due date.  This added convenience has been needed

          9  for a long time, and will also eliminate a source of

         10  confusion because New York State and the IRS have

         11  for some time permitted the use of the private mail

         12  delivery services.  We will allow them for the first

         13  time, allowing not only US Mail, but UPS, any other

         14  private mail delivery service that is recognized to

         15  bring in your tax payments.

         16                 Another provision of the Taxpayers'

         17  Assistance Bill would allow the Department of

         18  Finance to expeditiously remove erroneous tax

         19  judgement from the records.  We made an error, we

         20  would like to clean up the act, it takes us a long

         21  time to do that today.  Currently, Finance dockets

         22  tax warrants in the Supreme court, County Clerk's

         23  Office.  When finance discovers an error in a

         24  warrant, it must go through a cumbersome, time-

         25  consuming legal process to remove the erroneous
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          2  warrants from the records, including filing  motion

          3  to obtain a court order to vacated the warrant.  As

          4  a result, New Yorkers often must wait several months

          5  before an erroneous warrant is corrected and removed

          6  from the records of the taxpayer.  The proposed bill

          7  would permit Finance, as well as the State

          8  Department of Taxation and Finance to resolve

          9  erroneous warrants without going through a lengthy

         10  court procedure.

         11                 Lastly, the bill also would create an

         12  offers in compromise program to help New Yorkers who

         13  are in bankruptcy or insolvent to meet their tax

         14  obligations.  New York State currently offers such a

         15  program.  If enacted, the Department of Finance

         16  would be given the same authority for the City's

         17  non- property and excise taxes.

         18                 In addition, the bill would assist

         19  smaller taxpayers by allowing the State and City to

         20  approve offers in compromises without requiring the

         21  lengthy process of obtaining a court approval if the

         22  principal tax liability is less than $100,000.  The

         23  current threshold for requiring judicial approval is

         24  $25,000 and above, and it includes principal and

         25  interest and penalties, that means more small
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          2  taxpayers will not have to undergo and wait for a

          3  court approval for their office in compromise.

          4                 Finally, the proposed legislation

          5  includes several technical amendments to the City's

          6  business income taxes.  These provisions would

          7  clarify the tax treatment of S corporations and

          8  modernize the rules related to the taxation of the

          9  broadcasting companies.  More specifically,  the S

         10  corporation provisions would more closely conform

         11  City tax law to Federal tax law and codify current

         12  City tax treatment of certain types of S

         13  corporations allowed by Federal law in the mid-

         14  1990s.  The broadcasting rules would provide for a

         15  more accurate apportionment of broadcasting receipts

         16  and bring the GCT, which is the General Corporation

         17  Tax, into conformity with another tax that we have,

         18  which is the Unincorporated Business Tax rules that

         19  were enacted in 1996.

         20                 For these reasons, the Mayor and we,

         21  urge a yes vote on the Resolution.  Thank you.

         22                 If you have any questions, please let

         23  me know, I will try to answer them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Do we have any

         25  questions? Council Member Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Very quickly,

          3  the on- line capability for paying on taxes is what?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:  The

          5  on- line capability, some of our returns, some

          6  returns can be filed on- line, but not all returns

          7  yet.  Certain returns in the Corporate Tax and in

          8  the Business Taxes, such as estimated tax payments

          9  can now be filed on- line.  However, certain

         10  returns, final returns at the end of the year they

         11  usually file, and I'm not talking about the personal

         12  income tax, because that is administered by the New

         13  York State Department of Taxation and Finance, I'm

         14  talking about the Business Taxes the City

         15  administers, those returns cannot yet be filed on-

         16  line because we need special legislation, which

         17  we're going to go for next year, to allow taxpayers

         18  to file electronically, for us to be able to accept

         19  an electronic signature on- line.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, okay,

         21  thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Anyone else have

         23  any questions?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

         25  Okay, I have one more bill, Chairperson.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Absolutely.

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:  I

          4  don't need an introduction again.  Michael Hyman is

          5  here, Matthew McGuire from the Economic Development

          6  Corporation is here, regarding this Relocation

          7  Assistance Program, and Andrew Eisner, who helped us

          8  drafting the bill from our Department's Legal

          9  Affairs Bureau, is here as well, if you have any

         10  questions.

         11                 I will wait till you distribute the

         12  testimony to start.

         13                 I would like to thank you again for

         14  the opportunity to comment on this Resolution which

         15  concerns Assembly 8536- A, which would allow more

         16  small and growing businesses to avail themselves of

         17  the Relocation and Employment Assistance Program.

         18  REAP, as it is called, was implemented in the late

         19  1980s to encourage businesses to relocate to New

         20  York City and to encourage businesses south of 96th

         21  Street in Manhattan to move to other parts of the

         22  City.  Basically, the bill covers north of 96th

         23  Street, any relocations to north of 96th Street and

         24  all of the other four boroughs.  The REAP program

         25  was implemented in the late 1980s, as I said, and
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          2  the original program provided a tax credit of $500

          3  for each employee that was relocated.  The benefit

          4  then increased to $1,000 in 1985.  In 2000, the

          5  program was further enhanced for these section,

          6  enhanced for businesses that relocate to so- called

          7  commercial expansion areas in the outer boroughs and

          8  north of 96th Street in Manhattan by providing a tax

          9  credit of $3,000 per employee, for every employee

         10  that is relocated, and allowing taxpayers to claim

         11  refunds of unused credit.  So if they have two many

         12  credits that exceed their tax liability, this

         13  program allows them to get a refund of $3,000 per

         14  employee, if they don't have enough liability to

         15  cover it.

         16                 The bill under discussion would

         17  liberalize several requirements dating back to the

         18  original law in order to assist small and growing

         19  businesses.

         20                 One of these requirements is a limit

         21  on the maximum number of employees that can be

         22  counted for purposes of the credit to two- times the

         23  number that worked for the company prior to the

         24  relocation.  This cap can be overly restrictive for

         25  growing companies that easily reach this limit.  If
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          2  you have a small company that has two employees

          3  prior to the relocation, this limit only allows them

          4  to get a credit for double that, which is only four

          5  employees.  If you have a growing company,

          6  obviously, that is not enough.  This cap, as I said,

          7  is overly restrictive and the bill would amend the

          8  limit to two- times or 100 employees, whichever is

          9  greater.  So small companies will have a bigger shot

         10  at getting more benefits under this program.

         11                 Another amendment addresses the

         12  requirement that a taxpayer must be in business for

         13  at least 24 months prior to the year of relocation

         14  in order to be eligible for the program.  In order

         15  to help start up companies, the bill would allow

         16  companies in business for as little as 12 months to

         17  receive relocation benefits.

         18                 The third key amendment deals with

         19  the minimum expenditure for improvements that is

         20  currently required in order for a building to become

         21  eligible for the program.  In other words, someone

         22  who relocates to be eligible for the program has to

         23  move into a building that is eligible for the

         24  program.  Currently, that minimum expenditure that

         25  the building owner must put out in order to make
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          2  that building eligible for the program, is set at 50

          3  percent of current assessed value for commercial

          4  buildings, and 25 percent of assessed value for

          5  industrial buildings.  Usually this requires large

          6  scale renovation intended for large tenants, that

          7  was the original bill's intention.  In

          8  addition,these minimum expenditure requirements are

          9  substantially higher than the threshold used in the

         10  industrial and Commercial Incentive Program, a

         11  property tax exemption program.  The bill would

         12  lower the level of improvements needs to qualify to

         13  10 percent of assessed value, the same as the ICIP

         14  program in these areas.  Meaning that if a small

         15  tenant wants to move into the building and the owner

         16  does not want to renovate the entire building, he

         17  wants to renovate one floor, let's say of the

         18  building, he would be able to do that and conform to

         19  the eligibility requirements.

         20                 The bill also contains several

         21  technical changes to make it easier to administer

         22  the benefits to companies that relocate more than

         23  once and apply for benefits in several buildings.

         24  All together these enhancements to REAP would

         25  encourage the type of relocations that the 2000
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          2  amendments were intended to promote.  To date, such

          3  relocations have been limited because of the

          4  restrictions that I have just described.  This bill

          5  would ease the restrictions and encourage more

          6  businesses to relocate in New York City and

          7  neighborhoods outside of Downtown and Midtown

          8  Manhattan.

          9                 Therefore, I urge you to support this

         10  resolution. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Any questions?

         12  Thank you.

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER SCHUPPER:

         14  Thank you, Chairwoman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  We have also been

         16  joined by Council Member Jackson and Council Member

         17  Monserrate.

         18                 Hello and welcome.  Could you please

         19  introduce yourself for the record?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Yes,

         21  thank you, Madam Chair.  I am Michael Primeggia, the

         22  Deputy Commissioner for Traffic Operations at the

         23  Department of Transportation.

         24                 MS. HORSCH:  Andra Horsch, I'm the

         25  Director of Intergovernmental Affairs.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Thank

          3  you for providing us with the opportunity to discuss

          4  the Red Light Camera Program, and Commissioner

          5  Weinshall's support for a Home Rule Message in

          6  connection with the pending State Legislation to

          7  increase the number of intersections where red light

          8  cameras may be operated.

          9                 New York City's Red Light Camera

         10  Program has played an essential role in the City's

         11  efforts to enhance public safety. In its eight- year

         12  history, the program has proven to be an effective

         13  traffic safety measure that we believe prevents

         14  injuries and the loss of life resulting from

         15  accidents caused by red light running.  Since its

         16  inception hundreds of thousands of vehicles, which

         17  include passenger cars, buses and taxis have been

         18  caught going through red lights by these photo-

         19  monitoring devices.

         20                 In 2001 alone, 226,642 violations are

         21  issued.  All together since the program's inception

         22  we have issued more than 1.4 million notices of

         23  violation, ah, notices of liability since it began

         24  in 1993.

         25                 This program is an important public
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          2  safety initiative in a City with an ever growing

          3  volume of motor vehicles and potential hazards to

          4  motorists and pedestrians alike. Aggressive driving

          5  and the defiance of basic traffic laws contribute

          6  negatively to this increasingly dangerous

          7  environment.

          8  In New York City, accidents attributable to red

          9  light running are among the leading causes of

         10  traffic fatalities on the City streets.

         11                 The installation and operation of red

         12  light cameras has served as effective deterrents to

         13  motorists otherwise inclined to ignore traffic

         14  control signals.  Moreover, the deterrent effect of

         15  such cameras increases in direct correlation with an

         16  increase in the number of motorists aware of their

         17  placement.  This effect upon driver behavior has

         18  been demonstrable.  In fact, over the course of the

         19  program, the average number of tickets or notices of

         20  liabilities issued per camera fell from 30.8 in 1994

         21  to 12.4 notices of liability in 2001, a decrease of

         22  almost 60 percent. This status suggest an increasing

         23  reluctance by motorists who risk running a red

         24  light.

         25                 It is because of the success of this
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          2  program in enhancing public safety that has led to

          3  the Department's interest in seeking State

          4  legislation to increase the number of allowable

          5  intersections from 50 to 75.  While this program has

          6  been very effective in reducing unsafe driving on

          7  City streets, the current limitation of 50 cameras

          8  prevents us from a broader and much needed

          9  application of this important public safety

         10  initiative.

         11                 It is important to remember that the

         12  goal of the cameras is not just to reduce red light

         13  running at those intersections where cameras are

         14  installed, but to change motorists' behavior

         15  wherever they drive.  The reality of the current

         16  program is that the current State law allows us to

         17  operate cameras at less than one- half of one

         18  percent of all the signalized intersections in the

         19  City, only 50 out of nearly 11,500 locations.

         20                 We believe that in order to truly

         21  impact the behavior of New York motorists, cameras

         22  need to be present at many more locations around the

         23  City.  While we would certainly perform more than

         24  the addition of just 25 cameras as proposed in the

         25  pending legislation, it is a step in the right
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          2  direction.

          3                 For these reasons the Department

          4  supports the passage of this legislation, and

          5  requests that the Council grant a Home Rule Message

          6  in support.  In addition, our efforts to obtain

          7  State legislation to expand this program has been

          8  the subject of an ongoing battle in Albany, and

          9  therefore, any assistance, you, as members of the

         10  local legislative body could provide in helping to

         11  lobby the Legislature, particularly the Assembly,

         12  would be greatly appreciated.

         13                 As previously stated, this program

         14  has proven to be an enormously effective traffic

         15  safety measure preventing both injuries and loss of

         16  life resulting from accidents caused by red light

         17  running.  The cameras have proven themselves to

         18  effectively deter motorists who would otherwise

         19  ignore red light signals, thereby, preventing

         20  accidents, and most importantly, saving lives.

         21  Accordingly, in the interest of public safety, I

         22  urge you to grant a Home Rule Message in support of

         23  this bill.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  I have a question,
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          2  these 50 cameras, I don't want to know the exact

          3  locations, but how are they broken down by Borough?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Sure,

          5  I can let you have that.  Currently, the 50 cameras,

          6  there are 8 in Manhattan, 13 in Brooklyn, 18 in

          7  Queens, 6 in the Bronx, 5 in Staten Island.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  And where would

          9  the 25 additional cameras go, how would you, how

         10  would that be distributed Citywide?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  They

         12  would be distributed, similarly, in similar

         13  proportions, I don't have the exact numbers

         14  currently.  But I could certainly provide you our

         15  proposed locations, if you're interested in that, I

         16  can certainly provide that for you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  And just do you

         18  provide the exact locations of the cameras, I'm just

         19  curious?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We do

         21  not publicly give that information out.  Obviously,

         22  we know, we do have the information exactly where

         23  they are, but don't like to give that information

         24  out because we want motorists to stop at all red

         25  lights, not just at the 50 locations, or if this
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          2  passes, 75 locations were we have working cameras.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.

          4  Council Member Sears.              COUNCIL MEMBER

          5  SEARS:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I just want to

          6  congratulate, because I know that this really works.

          7  And I'm glad that there is this expansion of the 25.

          8    And the Chair asked the question in terms of how

          9  many were in the Borough. Unless we missed

         10  something, we're calculating 23, instead of 25, just

         11  wonder if we missed a number?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  No,

         13  there are 50 current locations.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That I know.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  And

         16  the bill that we're proposing would increase the

         17  number to 75.  So an additional 25 locations, this

         18  would permit us to expand to an additional 25

         19  locations.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I understand

         21  that, okay.  And you will not be releasing, I mean

         22  when it happens, and I understand the privacy of

         23  where the cameras are, is there something that the

         24  Chair of this Committee could have?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:
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          2  Absolutely, if you certainly would like that

          3  information, we can provide that information.  We

          4  don't publicize it through the media  - -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And I

          6  understand that.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA: - -

          8  for those reasons that I mentioned.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Absolutely.

         10  So what is given to this Committee is certainly kept

         11  private.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         13  Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

         17  Fidler

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Deputy

         19  Commissioner, I don't want you to take this question

         20  the wrong way, because I certainly support this

         21  legislation.  But I have some question about the

         22  statistics that you have, and the conclusion you

         23  have reached from the reduction of the number of

         24  tickets that are being issued per camera.  Don't you

         25  think that perhaps, it is not necessarily reluctance
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          2  of motorists to risk running a red light, but

          3  perhaps a growing public awareness by motorists of

          4  where the cameras might be that has reduced the

          5  number of tickets?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  It

          7  certainly can be, but remember we do not, we have an

          8  ability, the current law allows us to have 50 active

          9  locations at any one time.  And we have the ability

         10  to change those locations to a number of other, what

         11  we call spare locations.  And so while it is true

         12  that some motorists who go through a particular

         13  intersection have seen the cameras and have been

         14  caught on camera and are more careful at those

         15  locations, we do have an ability currently to

         16  rotate, to some degree, which cameras are active on

         17  any particular day.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  How often do

         19  you do that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We

         21  change, we have changed locations, we don't change

         22  them daily, but we certainly have changed locations

         23  from week to week and from month to month.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  And I would

         25  suggest that as you add cameras that it not
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          2  necessarily be so significant as to, you know, my

          3  Borough gets its share or doesn't get its share, but

          4  you pick the intersections that are clearly most

          5  dangerous as traffic, you know, as accident

          6  locations.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  In

          8  fact, in selecting locations, the reason why I

          9  couldn't tell you the exact 25 locations already

         10  proposed is because we, what we look at is accident

         11  statistics, the volume of vehicles going through a

         12  particular locations, the geometry of a particular

         13  location to determine if there is anything unusual

         14  or unnatural about the location.  Because we want to

         15  place these at locations where violations are

         16  continuing, not because there are some unusual

         17  geometry or unusual condition, but because the

         18  violations are occurring there because of disregard

         19  for the control.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

         22  Dilan.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes, Mr.

         24  Commissioner, I too would like to go on record as a

         25  supporter of this Message.  Just a brief question to
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          2  you, I heard you say briefly in your testimony that

          3  the Department would like to expand this initiative,

          4  I guess, I would assume beyond the 75 cameras.

          5                 Just some food for thought, and I'm

          6  not sure if any discussions have been made, but it

          7  might help the Legislature, it might help you with

          8  the Legislature if we can have some discussions with

          9  the Auto Insurance community to help bring rates

         10  down in Brooklyn.  I think that they might be

         11  interested in, and I know my constituents would be

         12  interested in that.  So that is just for the future.

         13                 And I noticed the Fiscal Impact

         14  Statement, I think you claimed that this would bring

         15  in $8 million of revenue for Fiscal Year 2003 and

         16  2004; is that correct?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  No, -

         18   -

         19                 MS. HORSCH:  No, its for the eight

         20  years of the program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Then what is

         22  the Administration's revenue estimate?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We

         24  believe the net revenue from the additional 25

         25  cameras will be approximately $850,000.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Eight hundred

          3  fifty - -

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Eight

          5  hundred and fifty thousand dollars.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: - -  thousand

          7  dollars.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  It

          9  would be the net revenue, it would cover its costs,

         10  the cost for the additional cameras, the additional

         11  contract cost associated with operating them, with

         12  issuing the notices of liability, and the net

         13  revenue would be $850,000.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  And that is

         15  just for Fiscal Year 2003; is that correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:

         17  Correct, for the first year.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay, and do

         19  you calculate a downward trend in the out years in

         20  your numbers, or do your numbers remain stable in

         21  the out years?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  We

         23  have seen the notices of liability, as I mentioned

         24  in the testimony, decrease a the locations, and so

         25  we do believe that it is a revenue, it becomes more
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          2  revenue neutral as the years go on.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Any other

          6  questions?  Thank you very much.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PRIMEGGIA:  Thank

          8  you, Madam Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Good afternoon and

         10  welcome. Could you please identify yourself for the

         11  record?

         12                 MR. ANDERS:  I'm Alan Anders, Deputy

         13  Director of OMB for Finance, and I'm basically

         14  responsible for running the City's Bond Financing

         15  Program for the Budget Director and for the Mayor.

         16                 I'm going to speak in support of two

         17  pieces of legislation, one is absolutely essential

         18  to the continuing financing program of the City, and

         19  the other one which is something that we found quite

         20  useful to save a little bit of money.  Let me deal

         21  with the bill that would give us, for another year,

         22  the ability to negotiate in financing.  This is

         23  Assembly 11553, Senate 7529, bill to amend the local

         24  Finance Law in relation to the sale of bonds.

         25                 Let me say three brief points in
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          2  support of this. We try to do as many of our bond

          3  sales by competitive bidding as we can.  That is

          4  where Wall Street sets up syndicates to bid against

          5  each other to purchase bonds.  It is practiced in

          6  the Municipal Market, however, that if you have a

          7  bond sale in excess of $200 million, it is too big

          8  for any syndicate to buy.  So instead for those bond

          9  sales, and our bond sales are typically 400 to 500

         10  million dollars in size, and often greater than a

         11  billion dollars, every several years we have a

         12  competitive Request For Proposal process to select

         13  lead underwriters so that we can mobilize the entire

         14  Wall Street in our bond sales.

         15                 Secondly, we have retail, we invented

         16  the process of retail order periods where we offer

         17  the bonds several days ahead of our bond sales to

         18  small investors.  And this cannot be done in

         19  conjunction with a competitive sale, and we

         20  typically sell 20 to 30 percent of our bonds that

         21  way.

         22                 Lastly, and I think it is the thing

         23  that you all are most interested in, where we really

         24  need this authority is to do our refunding.  Last

         25  month, we did a billion dollar GO refunding and
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          2  saved in excess of $100 million.  In July we will be

          3  doing another advanced refunding for a billion

          4  dollars.  This year we're counting on 300 to 400

          5  million dollars of budget savings to avoid other

          6  budget cuts or revenue increases through advanced

          7  refunding. And bond sales of that size and excess of

          8  a billion dollars cannot be sold by competitive

          9  sale.

         10                 So I think there is an appreciation

         11  in Albany of the importance of this to the City.  We

         12  would love to have permanent authority, they give it

         13  to us once every year, so we need to go back to

         14  them.  And we really appreciate a Home Rule Message,

         15  before the end of the fiscal year, which is only a

         16  couple weeks away, so we not have the capital

         17  program or our refunding grind to a halt.

         18                 Secondly, there is this litter piece

         19  of legislation, temporary investments of bond

         20  proceeds, which we have gotten used to renewing

         21  periodically.  This renews typically every three

         22  years, and allows us, it has allowed us for a number

         23  of years to invest bond proceeds in other than

         24  federal government securities to increase the yield

         25  on our temporary investments.  Very conservative

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  investments, commercial paper of corporations, only

          3  for three months and only if it is triple- A and

          4  federally guaranteed security.  So we save a million

          5  dollars a year with this.  A million dollars is a

          6  million dollars, it's worth the support.  We

          7  appreciate your Home Rule Message on this one as

          8  well.  This is Assembly 11552 and Senate 7530.

          9                 I would be happy to take any

         10  questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  Do we

         12  have any questions?  Thank you very much.

         13                 MR. ANDERS:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Could you please

         15  identify yourself for the record?  And we're going

         16  to be recessing, and then we will be returning, so

         17  if you could keep your testimony briefly, we would

         18  appreciate it?

         19                 MR. OLIVIERI:  Certainly.  My name is

         20  Alessandro Olivieri.  I'm Counsel for the Parks

         21  Department.  I'm here to request, respectfully

         22  request a Home Rule Message for Assembly 11776 and

         23  Senate 7350- A.  This is an act to amend certain

         24  sections of the City Charter to allow our Park

         25  Enforcement patrol officers to write, to clarify
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          2  their ability to write ECB summonses on the property

          3  control under the jurisdiction of the Hudson River

          4  Park Trust and the Battery Park City Authority,

          5  which we are going to be answerable to the ECB.  It

          6  will also provide the enforceable duly promulgated

          7  rules of the Hudson River Park Trust and the Battery

          8  Park City Authority to be also enforced in the ECB

          9  courts.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  Do we

         11  have any questions?  Thank you very much.

         12                 MR. OLIVIERI:  Thank you, I tried to

         13  keep it brief.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Okay, thank you.

         15  Okay, we're going to be taking a recess.  We will

         16  now be hearing from the Actuary, Mr. North.

         17  Whenever you're ready, Mr. North.

         18                 MR. NORTH:  Thank you, Madam Chair,

         19  Council members. I'm Robert C. North, Jr., Chief

         20  Actuary for the New York City Retirement Systems.  I

         21  will be brief.  There are a few of these pension

         22  bills for which I believe a couple of items might be

         23  valuable for the record.

         24                 Beginning with Senate 7344, Assembly

         25  11392, the Special Officer 25- year Program bill.
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          2  You should be aware that this amends  Chapter 582 of

          3  the laws of 2001 to clarify the definition of

          4  Special Officers and eligible parties.  We would

          5  just note from prior testimony that the Actuary

          6  looks at these bills from a point of view of being

          7  technically correct, understandable, administrable

          8  and meeting policy objectives.

          9                 We believe that this amendment still

         10  fails to achieve the objective of being technically

         11  correct, and will create both understanding and

         12  administrative problems in that the definition, for

         13  example, of Special Officers differs in Section One

         14  of the bill from Section Two of the bill, and

         15  similarly in Section Three of the bill.  And I don't

         16  believe that when we come to administer it we're

         17  going to be able to cover all of the people who are

         18  supposed to be covered by the bill because they are

         19  not named in the proper sections.  So that is my

         20  comment on that one.

         21                 With respect to the Auto Mechanics

         22  bill Senate 7598, Assembly 1150540- A, this repeals

         23  Chapter 560 of the laws of 2001. I have to say it is

         24  a vast improvement over the existing statute.

         25  However, it too has some modest theoretical and
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          2  administrative, or technical and administrative

          3  problems.  For example, the definition of the

          4  benefit payable on service retirement in Tier IV

          5  states that it will be 50 percent, a final average

          6  salary for the first 20 years, followed by 2 percent

          7  times final salary for service over 20 years.

          8                 The problem with that is that it is

          9  not 2 percent times final average salary times years

         10  of service.  Leaning to a question since final

         11  salary is not a defined term in Tier IV, it has to

         12  be figured out.

         13                 Second, I don't believe anybody

         14  intended to grant only 2 percent of some number for

         15  service after 20, but 2 percent times years.  So it

         16  too could be improved from a technical and

         17  administrative viewpoint.

         18                 Going to the Corrections' bill, which

         19  is Senate 1544- A, Assembly 2470- A, two comments.

         20  This amends RSSL 504- A and 504- B to reduce the

         21  period in which additional member contributions are

         22  required from 30 to 20 years.  I believe it may be

         23  technically correct.  I'm not sure that the latest

         24  financial impacts have been made available to you.

         25  We have issued a fiscal note yesterday, and
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          2  indicated that the additional annual employer cost

          3  would be $3.9 million per year.

          4                 This bill has been before the Council

          5  before, I believe, in 1998, at which time we

          6  indicated $2.5 million per year. This is a bill that

          7  cost does increase each year as members get closer

          8  and closer to their 20- year date.

          9                 Finally, just a comment on Senate

         10  7740, the 10- year Phase In bill, two comments - -

         11  three comments.  One, we believe it is technically

         12  correct.  It amends the Administrative of the City

         13  of New York 13- 696, having to do with the timing of

         14  paying for the Cost of Living Adjustments under

         15  Chapter 125 of the laws of 2000.

         16                 The fiscal note that was printed with

         17  the bill inadvertently is a fiscal note that was

         18  replaced by an updated fiscal note, and hopefully

         19  the Council has been given the revised numbers.  The

         20  fiscal note that should have been used was the one

         21  issued June 10th, Fiscal Note No. 2002- 11- U.

         22                 And just one last thing, this bill

         23  does represent a deferral of City pension

         24  contributions, there are no savings involved.  There

         25  are no changes in the benefits payable to members,
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          2  it is merely a deferral of costs similar to

          3  mortgaging the house.

          4                 And those are the only comments that

          5  I have for you. Madam Chair, I appreciate very much

          6  the opportunity, and would be glad to answer any

          7  questions on these or any other bills that the

          8  Committee wishes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  North.  Do we have any questions?  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MR. NORTH:  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  We will be hearing

         14  testimony from John Driscoll.  Introduce yourself

         15  for the record, please?

         16                 MR. DRISCOLL:  I'm John Driscoll,

         17  President of the Captains' Endowment Association.

         18                 MR. VISCONTI:  I'm Nicholas Visconti.

         19    I'm a Chief's Representative of the Uniformed Fire

         20  Officers Association, and also speaking for the

         21  Uniformed Firefighters Association.

         22                 MR. DRISCOLL:  I will be speaking on

         23  behalf of all of the Police Unions.  Today,

         24  unfortunately, we had a funeral for Jack Healy, who

         25  was the Vice- President of the Detectives Endowment
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          2  Association, all the Union Leaders were up there, I

          3  came back from that funeral.

          4                 I just want to express our

          5  appreciation for the Council considering this bill.

          6  The VSF Bill, as Commissioner Hanley stated, the

          7  City now supports in exchange for the union support

          8  of the COLA extension payments from five to ten

          9  years.  As all of you are well aware, the Police

         10  Department is going through a retention crisis.

         11  Presently, we have less than 37,000 members in the

         12  New York City Police Department, we have less than

         13  1,000 members that have over 20 years of service.

         14  Contrast that with 1979, when the Police Department

         15  had 19 percent of the Police Department that had

         16  over 20 years of service.

         17                 On top of that we have a recruitment

         18  problem, which was painfully aware, you saw that

         19  they recruited, they signed up 37,000 people for

         20  these past couple of tests, they had less than

         21  10,000 show up for the tests.  We normally only hire

         22  one out of ten.  So that would only yield a class

         23  for say 1,000 people, and yet, the Department right

         24  now is under 37,000.

         25                 So it's crucial that we pass
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          2  retention bills, this VFS Bill is a retention bill.

          3  It would encourage members to at least stay beyond

          4  20 and not get penalized by not retiring and then

          5  failing to collect that.  And the member would not

          6  be eligible for it until he retires and only after

          7  they retire under a service retirement.

          8                 So we appreciate your consideration.

          9  We believe it is vitally necessary for the safety of

         10  the citizens of New York to retain our experienced

         11  police officers.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  Do we

         14  have any questions?

         15                 MR. VISCONTI:  I'm also speaking on

         16  behalf of the UFA, as I mentioned, and the Uniformed

         17  Firefighters Association, and we're in support of

         18  the Administration's efforts to have the VFS Bill

         19  passed.  They recognize as the Fire Department does

         20  that there has been an unprecedented loss in the

         21  Fire Department.

         22                 On September 11th, we lost 343 Chief

         23  Officers, Company Officers and Firefighters.  Now

         24  we're faced with an unprecedented increase in the

         25  rate of retirements.  The potential would be
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          2  devastating on the Fire Department.  We are

          3  currently looking at three to four times the rate of

          4  retirements in the Officers rank, and that usually

          5  relates to a two, or a ratio of two to three in the

          6  Firefighters ranks.  We're running low on Company

          7  Officers as it is.  The increase in promotions will

          8  result in less experienced people being available to

          9  fight fires.

         10                 On September 11th, those 343 lives

         11  translate into over 4,000 years of experience in the

         12  Fire Department.  A further drain of the resources

         13  or the personnel in the Fire Department, the

         14  experienced personnel will severely limit the

         15  ability for the Fire Department to function.

         16                 We really appreciate the support of

         17  the City Council in this matter, and the City

         18  Administration.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  Do we

         21  have any questions?  Thank you very much.

         22                 MR. DRISCOLL:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. VISCONTI:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  The Chair

         25  recognizes Vinny Montalbano and Gregory Floyd,
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          2  Teamsters Local 237.

          3                 MR. MONTALBANO:  Thank you, Madam

          4  Chair.  Greg Floyd had to leave to pick his daughter

          5  up at a dance class, so I'm here representing Local

          6  237 as their New York City government

          7  representative, and I'm here with Jonathan Schwartz,

          8  who is our Actuary.

          9                 Let me just briefly explain what this

         10  bill does, and why Mr. North's objections, we think,

         11  don't hold any water. Basically, these are technical

         12  amendments to existing law.  Chapter 482 of the laws

         13  of 2001, which are in the support statement we give

         14  you, we just gave you was passed last year providing

         15  a 25- year retirement for certain civilian titles

         16  that Local 237 represents and I think that some

         17  other unions represent as well.

         18                 Two titles were inadvertently left

         19  out of the bill, as you know that happens at times,

         20  in complicated, end of session legislative things,

         21  such as what we're doing now, and we just want to

         22  get those titles in so that everyone is covered.

         23                 There is no fiscal note because it is

         24  self- funded. The employees, the members of the

         25  Retirement System pay for this themselves.
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          2                 Mr. North's concern about some

          3  technical problems appear to be unfounded because he

          4  is commenting on a piece of legislation that

          5  basically just includes members in another piece of

          6  legislation that became law.  So if the Legislature

          7  didn't see any technical problems with the way it

          8  was written, we don't feel there are any technical

          9  problems with the way it is written, and that it is

         10  just very simply what it does.

         11                 So we ask you to help us correct this

         12  oversight to add these two titles, which are school

         13  safety agents in the Board of Ed, and Special

         14  Officers in the Housing Authority to their brothers

         15  and sisters who are covered in last year's law.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Questions?  Thank

         18  you, Vinny.

         19                 MR. MONTALBANO:  Thank you, Madam

         20  Chair,

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Jack Freedman,

         22  Local 246.

         23                 MR. FREEDMAN:  My name is Jack

         24  Freedman.  I am here in reference to some technical

         25  amendments on Assembly Bill 11540, and Senate Bill
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          2  7598- S.

          3                 Good afternoon, Chairwoman Baez and

          4  the City Council members of the Committee.  I am

          5  here today to ask for your support in granting Home

          6  Rule for some technical amendments inadvertently

          7  left out of legislation of Chapter 550, which went

          8  into effect on December 12th, 2001.

          9                 The original legislation granted this

         10  pension improvements, had received complete support

         11  by the City Council by granting Home Rule and

         12  support of both houses of the Legislature and signed

         13  into law by Governor Pataki effective December 12th,

         14  2001.  These technical amendments were reviewed by

         15  Director John Murphy from NYCERS and approved.  They

         16  included the ability for the participants to get a

         17  pension loan on its contribution and other minor

         18  adjustments that were technical errors in the bill's

         19  language.

         20                 These technical amendments, as with

         21  other pension improvements of Chapter 560, are self-

         22  funded by the participants and have absolutely no

         23  cost to the City nor the pension fund. Chapter 560,

         24  as some of you may recall, had complete support from

         25  the former members and present members of this

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  Council, State Legislature, Senator, Governor Pataki

          3  and signed the bill into law.

          4                 I am urging your support for Home

          5  Rule on this legislation to make the necessary

          6  technical adjustments so that this bill can be

          7  utilized by our membership.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  Do we

          9  have any questions?  Thank you very much.

         10                 MR. FREEDMAN:  Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Don Rothschild and

         12  Donald Faeth. Please identify yourself for the

         13  record?

         14                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Good afternoon,

         15  Madam Chairwoman, members of the Committee.  My name

         16  is Don Rothschild.  I'm President of the Uniformed

         17  EMS Officers Union, Fire Department of New York.

         18                 We're here today to ask for your

         19  support in the bill that is up in Albany right now

         20  to grant EMS members the same heart coverage that is

         21  currently enjoyed by police officers and

         22  firefighters.  As we all know, the EMS workforce

         23  works under one of the most stressful situations

         24  that are known today, with the exception of Air

         25  Traffic Controllers, there are very few jobs in this
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          2  nation that are as stressful as pre- hospital

          3  emergency care.

          4                 We receive a physical upon entering

          5  the job prior to anybody going out into the streets.

          6    Over the course of the years through the various

          7  calls that we receive, the things that we see, the

          8  things that we do, it is unfortunately a by- product

          9  that people tend to become stressed out, high blood

         10  pressure, and unfortunately, we have had a number of

         11  people who have had heart attacks.  Just recently we

         12  lost a paramedic within the last week from heart-

         13  related ailments.

         14                 All we're asking for is the security

         15  that our families will be protected, if God forbid

         16  something happens to one of us that we can no longer

         17  work, or pass away.

         18                 Once again I thank you, and hope that

         19  you will support us in supporting our bill.

         20                 I'm going to turn it over now to Don

         21  Faeth, my counterpart from the Uniformed EMTs Union.

         22                 MR. FAETH:  Hello, Madam Chairwoman,

         23  distinguished members of the Council.  My name is

         24  Don Faeth.  I'm the Vice President of Local 2507,

         25  Uniformed EMTs and Paramedics, New York City Fire
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          2  Department.

          3                 I want to thank you for the support

          4  you have given us in the past.  Right now, this is a

          5  very important bill for our members, due to the most

          6  recent events.  Morale is very low with the

          7  membership, post- and pre- 911.  We are the third

          8  component of the 911 triad.   When you call 911, you

          9  have Fire, Police and EMS. EMS has often been that

         10  one entity that does not receive the recognition or

         11  acknowledgement of the public and of the

         12  politicians.  And what I find very disheartening

         13  through my career is the fact that I have seen very

         14  qualified, highly trained members of our service

         15  leaving to the other emergency services purely for

         16  the disparity in the benefits and the protections

         17  that they have. This translates into a loss to the

         18  communities.  And this disparity needs to be smooth

         19  out, and that is why we're here today.

         20                 We're looking for your support, not

         21  to re- invent the wheel, but just to equalize the

         22  playing filed and have these people who are in the

         23  pre- hospital field enjoy the same benefits that

         24  their counterparts that they stand shoulder to

         25  shoulder with out in the streets on a day- to- day
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          2  basis, have also.  Appreciate your support.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Do we have any

          5  questions?  No. Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Thank you.

          7                 MR. FAETH:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  This Committee

          9  will now be taking a recess, and we will be back

         10  here tonight.

         11                 (Recess taken).

         12                 Good evening, everyone.  We are

         13  continuing our State and Federal Legislation

         14  hearing.  We have already heard testimony on the

         15  items in the two large packets before you, except on

         16  the Mayor's Omnibus Revenue Package.  This item will

         17  have to wait until we have two house bills.

         18                 We have a couple of additions to the

         19  agenda:

         20                 First, is the Preconsidered SLR

         21  eliminating employee contributions for the improved

         22  benefit plan after 20 years for Correction Officers.

         23                 Second, is MM 180, which would give

         24  the Department of Consumer Affairs hearing and

         25  docketing authority for their violations.
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          2                 We have the Commissioner here to

          3  explain several protections we have agreed to in

          4  this measure to protect small businesses.

          5                 Finally, I'm going to update and

          6  repeat what I said earlier concerning our SLR to

          7  provide pension death benefits to domestic partners.

          8    This bill applies to the five City pension plans

          9  and gives domestic partners accidental death

         10  benefits if a member dies in the line of the duty.

         11  It would treat domestic partners like surviving

         12  spouses for purposes of accidental death benefits.

         13  We now have the bill introduced in the Assembly and

         14  the Senate, many of you will remember the hearing on

         15  the Garumba Bill before this Committee several weeks

         16  ago.  At that time, I and many of my colleagues were

         17  very upset that we would give the domestic partner

         18  of one firefighter an accidental death benefit that

         19  the law excludes all other domestic partners from

         20  receiving.

         21                 I promised at that hearing that we

         22  would have legislation introduced to change the law.

         23    Today this has happened in both houses, and we are

         24  voting a Preconsidered SLR to support that

         25  legislation.  Thank you.
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          2                 I would like to thank the Speaker, my

          3  colleagues, Margarita Lopez, Chris Quinn, Phil Reed,

          4  who have worked so hard with me over the last few

          5  weeks to make this possible.  I would also like to

          6  thank the Mayor's Office for working with us on the

          7  draft of this legislation.  After the bumpy start we

          8  had at the April hearing, it was heartening and

          9  gratifying that we would worked together on this.

         10                 I urge my colleagues here today, who

         11  all voted to give Firefighter Garumba's domestic

         12  partner a death benefit, to do the same for all

         13  future domestic partners who find themselves in the

         14  same tragic situation.

         15                 We're going to be hearing testimony

         16  from Commissioner Dykstra from the Department of

         17  Consumer Affairs.

         18                 Before we start, I would like to

         19  also, once again, thank my colleagues for their

         20  patience and their support, and I want to take the

         21  time to, a few minutes to introduce them from left

         22  to right.  We have Council Member Sears, Council

         23  Member Addabbo, Council Member Fidler - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  No, Felder.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Felder, I'm sorry.
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          2    Council Member McMahon, Council Member Gerson,

          3  Council Member Lopez, Council Member Rivera, Council

          4  Member Monserrate, Council Member Koppell, Council

          5  Member Boyland, Council Member Dilan, Council Member

          6  Quinn, Council Member Reed, and Council Member Liu,

          7  and thank you all for your patience and your support

          8  here today.

          9                 Okay, Commissioner.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  It's late, but

         11  it is nice to be here and I thank you for giving us

         12  this opportunity.  I'm feeling we all should have

         13  brought our pajamas though, that is what it is going

         14  to feel like.

         15                 I want to thank Chairperson Baez for

         16  meeting me on several occasions to talk about this

         17  important piece of legislation, I think to further

         18  protect consumers of New York City. The

         19  Administration has proposed this legislation to

         20  strengthen and streamline DCA's ability to enforced

         21  all the laws under its jurisdiction, and to collect

         22  all the fines.

         23                 The Department currently faces two

         24  obstacles that dilute its effectiveness.   With only

         25  a few exceptions, DCA can only hear cases against
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          2  businesses we license, and we license 55 different

          3  categories of businesses, and not cases against

          4  businesses that might violate consumer protection

          5  laws, but which we do not license.  And second, if a

          6  business does not pay its fines, DCA must go into

          7  State Court and docket those fines before working

          8  with the sheriff to collect them.  Time is wasted,

          9  money is lost, and the honest businesses that do pay

         10  their fines are put in an unfair disadvantage with

         11  their competitors, everybody loses.

         12                 The legislation the Administration

         13  has proposed would authorize DCA to adjudicate all

         14  the laws it enforces and to docket the final orders

         15  of its administrative tribunal.

         16                 The Consumer Protection Law is the

         17  broadest of all the laws the Department enforces,

         18  covering a wide range of practices and businesses.

         19  While this law applies alike to licensed and

         20  unlicensed businesses, the Department could use

         21  administrative hearings to enforced this law, as I

         22  said, only against licensees. Licensees charged with

         23  a violation of this law must resolve the violation,

         24  or risk losing their license.  DCA encourages

         25  unlicensed businesses in violation of its CPL
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          2  through informal settlement discussions, but we have

          3  no power to force them in front of an impartial

          4  fact- finder unless DCA sues in the State Supreme

          5  Court. As a result, most unlicensed businesses

          6  ignore outstanding violations of the CPL and the bad

          7  practice continues.

          8                 By giving DCA this hearing authority

          9  all respondents will have equal opportunities to

         10  resolve disputed violations by defending their acts

         11  and practices before an impartial tribunal. Disputes

         12  can be settled more quickly at less expense to both

         13  the businesses and the City and it would level the

         14  playing filed for all the businesses.

         15                 In an ironic miscalculation, it was

         16  DCA that wrote the original law believing that

         17  businesses would routinely appealing administrative

         18  decisions to the courts, and, thus, they decided to

         19  sidestep this by having the Department go straight

         20  to civil court.  But businesses rarely appeal

         21  administrative decisions so what was illusory has

         22  now become a severe obstruction.

         23                 The bill would also give the

         24  Department an ability to docket as civil judgement

         25  the final decisions of its administrative tribunal.
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          2  This would allow DCA to strengthen and streamline

          3  the Department's efforts to collect the fines that

          4  have been duly assessed against violators.

          5                 The Department estimates that it

          6  currently costs approximately $350, four hours of

          7  legal time plus four hours of paralegal time to

          8  enter a final administrative decision.  Since the

          9  average fine is $407, it is neither cost- effective

         10  nor a productive use of the Department's staff to

         11  launch the legal efforts necessary to collect such

         12  fines.  Violators who know that DCA is not likely to

         13  take them to court to collect such fines simply

         14  don't pay.  We have, in fact, $8 million of

         15  outstanding, uncollected fines.

         16                 Since the Department can link license

         17  renewal to paying outstanding fines, it has some

         18  leverage to collect those fines from licensed

         19  business, but not so with non- licensed businesses.

         20                 Two amendments have been added to the

         21  original proposal.  One would require the Department

         22  to serve a notice of violation and any default

         23  decision to the corporate office, if one exists, as

         24  well as the local office store where the violation

         25  was found.  This helps the company manage its local
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          2  branches more efficiently.  The other amendment

          3  tracks a rule that already exists in the general

          4  business law that requires a business to display in

          5  English the name of the business.  It's the kind of

          6  requirement DCA enforces upon a complaint.

          7                 Your favorable action on this Home

          8  Rule Message is an essential step to enhance DCA's

          9  ability to adjudicate on an equal footing the

         10  violations of all consumer laws that you have

         11  authorized us to enforce, and then to collect those

         12  fines.  It helps the City and it makes it fair for

         13  honest businesses.

         14                 Thank you and I would be happy to

         15  discuss any further issues.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you,

         17  Commissioner.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Would you like

         19  me to add the three things that we have also

         20  discussed informally, or would you like to bring

         21  them up, Council member?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  No, I just want to

         23  say on the record that I had serious concerns

         24  regarding this bill, and we have met on several

         25  occasions, because I felt that there was no
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          2  protection for the small businesses, or the ghettos,

          3  which I have many of in my district as so does my

          4  colleagues.  And I do want you to explain to us on

          5  the several protections that we have agreed to, and

          6  then I will leave questions for my colleagues.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Well this is

          8  really, I think, to your credit and let me explain

          9  that the Department of Consumer Affairs since this

         10  Administration took over and I began in the middle

         11  of February, has begun to think about and implement

         12  a series of outreach efforts into neighborhoods all

         13  around the City.  We have begun, in fact, in

         14  Flushing where we have been on three separate

         15  occasions.  We have translated materials into

         16  Korean, we have given seminars in the evenings to

         17  Home Improvement Contractors, multi- lingual

         18  seminars in Korean and English.  We have handed out

         19  those materials that we have translated, and we have

         20  returned to Flushing to actually license Home

         21  Improvement Contractors.

         22                 Upon an invitation we went back to

         23  talk to the Green Grocers about the Consumer

         24  Protection Law, the Tobacco Law, and Weights and

         25  Measures.  We have meetings scheduled for Brooklyn
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          2  with the Arab- American Green Grocers, and we are,

          3  in fact, actively looking for partnerships

          4  throughout the City.  And thanks to Council Member

          5  Baez, we have committed ourselves to the next nine

          6  months to do vibrant and constant education where we

          7  would meet throughout the Boroughs to talk to small

          8  businesses about Weights and Measures, Stoop Line

          9  Laws, Tobacco Laws.  And during that nine month

         10  period we have, we will in a sense give a future

         11  amnesty, nobody will receive violations on those

         12  laws, if they have not already been covered by this

         13  hearing authority.

         14                 So that, in fact, gives, I think and

         15  I hope, many small businesses an opportunity to be

         16  educated.  In addition, when we do go out, if we

         17  find a violation, we will give what is known as a

         18  curable ticket.  And rather than pay a fine, those

         19  people will come to DCA where they will in fact use

         20  that moment as an educational moment, a further

         21  education on the rules and the regulations.

         22                 And we will do this, and I hope we

         23  can do it with many Council members in as many

         24  districts in all the boroughs, as possible.

         25                 In addition, being sensitive to the
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          2  problem that particularly in small stores, sometimes

          3  the violations are given to a clerk who is not

          4  responsible and the violation is then thrown away,

          5  we will experiment over the next six months with a

          6  Nail and Mail procedure, which means that if the

          7  manager is not there, or if an acting manager has

          8  not been appointed and is assigned to the store, we

          9  will tack up the violation, as well as send it to

         10  the shop owner, so that there is no problem with a

         11  clerk throwing it out, and then the shop owner, in

         12  fact, getting even a larger violation.

         13                 I also want to assure you that we

         14  have 80 inspectors in the Department of Consumer

         15  Affairs.  That is probably half of what it had

         16  several years ago.  There are many priorities and

         17  there are many obligations to us.  As a Department,

         18  we have established certain principles.  And those

         19  principles, which have been written and I talk about

         20  often are is that we embrace the diversity of the

         21  City, that we, in fact, think what we should be

         22  doing are protecting consumers where the need is the

         23  greatest and the harm is the greatest, and

         24  therefore, we make strategic choices all the time

         25  about where we will send our inspectors.
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          2                 And although it is my job to obey the

          3  law and fulfill the laws that you pass, I do hope

          4  you understand that there are a lot of pressures on

          5  me and we cannot always do everything that some

          6  people would like us to do, but we try.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  I have one

          8  question, what is DCA prepared to do in terms of the

          9  language barrier?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  DCA, in fact,

         11  we already have our hotline, is multi- lingual, we

         12  have our hotline in Spanish and Chinese and Korean

         13  and French.  We have inspectors who speak those

         14  languages, and in fact, at our seminar so far in

         15  Flushing, we have done them in multi, in actually

         16  two languages Korean and Chinese. So we will have

         17  translations and work with community- based

         18  organizations to give both translated materials and

         19  simultaneous translations at seminars.

         20                 I have to confess that we are a

         21  little weak on Russian, but we're trying to solve

         22  that problem.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  I will

         24  now ask Council Member Lopez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  All of us are
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          2  very tired, and I had to call the attention of all

          3  of my colleagues to the fact that we are in the

          4  presence of that incredible Chair.  I mean, it is

          5  unbelievable what she has accomplished.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  You're going to

          7  make me cry here, I'm very emotional.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  For starters,

          9  look how late it is, and this Chair has managed to

         10  get a Commissioner here.  I cannot get a

         11  Commissioner at one o'clock in the afternoon.  And

         12  she had juice, a lot of juice.

         13                 Commissioner, I hear you, the

         14  explanations that you gave, and I understand that

         15  the Chair has been working with you very carefully

         16  on those things.  I only need to just further

         17  clarify two of those points.  As you know, many of

         18  us live in communities that basically the small

         19  businesses are the economic development of our

         20  areas.  And this particular bill is going to impact

         21  the businesses in all of our communities.

         22                 Therefore, when this come down we

         23  need to be ready to understand what is it that

         24  you're going to implement, particularly in

         25  communities of color, like Chinatown, and a
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          2  community that are primarily Latinos, whose

          3  languages are a different language than English.

          4  Than when you said that you're going to train and

          5  you're going to provide training and manuals, how is

          6  it that you're going to do that?  Are you going to

          7  go store by store giving the information to the

          8  owners, how are they going to learn that the law

          9  changed, how are they going to be notified?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Well let me

         11  start with your second question, first, if I may?

         12  We really need the help of community- based

         13  organizations and trade associations.  If I may use

         14  Flushing as an example, the Korean- American

         15  Construction Association, which represents many of

         16  the Home Improvement Contractors, became our partner

         17  for the Home Improvement Contractors in that part of

         18  Queens.  We translated all of the materials that

         19  have legal implications into Korean.  The Korean

         20  American Construction Association took it upon

         21  themselves to translate all of those materials that

         22  are more explanatory, like the test that they have

         23  to take, we, together, provided simultaneous

         24  translations, and they did the outreach, not only

         25  through their members, but we got very good coverage
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          2  in the Korean Press in that part of Queens on

          3  several different occasions.

          4                 So we need to work in partnership

          5  with organizations that are reaching out to these

          6  people, and we are spending a fair amount of time

          7  identifying those groups, reaching out and

          8  developing these sorts of partnerships.  We cannot

          9  do it alone.  So that is first and foremost.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And that

         11  period of time will be on a nine- month period?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  We have

         13  committed ourselves to doing it for nine months, but

         14  I can honestly tell you that this is a commitment

         15  that I have brought with me to the job, and I don't

         16  expect us to stop after nine months.  I think this

         17  work is ongoing, because there are, as I said, 55

         18  different categories of businesses.

         19                 But let me clear up something and

         20  this goes to your first question.  We already

         21  license 55 different kinds of businesses, many of

         22  them, most of them, small businesses in

         23  neighborhoods.  Anything from fruit and vegetable

         24  stands, the Stoop Line Laws, locksmiths, home

         25  improvement contractors, electronic stores, pawn
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          2  shops.  We're already in the neighborhoods of New

          3  York City.

          4                 So what happens is that we are

          5  already working with many of those businesses,

          6  because to get a license, these are the ones that

          7  are already licensed, they fill out applications

          8  that are appended to that are an explanation of all

          9  the laws.  What we're talking about are businesses

         10  that we don't license that are breaking the Consumer

         11  Protection Law, and let me give you an example.

         12                 Deceitful advertising, batten switch,

         13  selling old goods as new goods, those are all

         14  violations of the Consumer Protection Law.  If a

         15  business, which we do license, breaks that law, we,

         16  in fact, that is what we mean by the nine- month

         17  amnesty. We will write a ticket, but it will not

         18  bring with it a fine, it will bring with it an

         19  educational message and an opportunity to come to

         20  DCA to hear about the regulations that guide that

         21  law.  So we hope that the small businesses that will

         22  be new to our net, although there aren't that many

         23  because we cover so many already, will actually have

         24  many opportunities to be educated, through these

         25  community forums where we need, admittedly, the help
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          2  of others; through the neighborhood press, which we

          3  already work with a great deal.  And then, if they

          4  in fact, break that violation over the next nine

          5  months, the ticket that they get, which will not be

          6  a violation with money, will be an opportunity for

          7  education.  We can do a lot.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Will you have

          9  personnel in your Department that will speak the

         10  languages that all of this small business owners

         11  will speak in case that they do not speak English?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  No, because as

         13  I understand it, it is something like 140 different

         14  languages are spoken in New York.  Again, that is

         15  why I underscore the need for partners.  We have

         16  good language capacity at DCA, we do not speak all

         17  the languages.  We also reach businesses through our

         18  inspections, through our licensing cashiers, but we

         19  do not reach all businesses. We need to identify,

         20  and I have already, as I have said, been in touch

         21  with many groups to help us identify the trade

         22  associations that reach these people.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Well I will

         24  say to you that it would be a good idea also to

         25  enlist the help of your Council members in the
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          2  particular districts.  Perhaps, all of us can be

          3  very helpful in order to make sure, number one, that

          4  these laws are implemented adequately and fair.  And

          5  number two, that it is going to be about benefiting

          6  everybody, and not just about fining businesses in

          7  order to fulfill the budget gap.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  I'm glad you

          9  said that, and I think it is important for me to say

         10  that Mayor Bloomberg has made it clear to me that my

         11  job is to, in fact, uphold the law.  But that my

         12  ultimate responsibility is to protect consumers.

         13  And therefore, my position on this is that we want

         14  to stop the bad business practice, and if that means

         15  fining people until they learn, fine.  But my

         16  interest is in stopping consumers from being hurt,

         17  not to gain revenues for the City.

         18                 But having said that, I think it is

         19  important to remember that if a business is

         20  currently licensed, and let me use tobacco as an

         21  example.  A store must be licensed to sell tobacco.

         22  It is a violation to sell tobacco to minors, we're

         23  not going to back off of that.  We are going to

         24  continue to enforced that, because when you are

         25  licensed you get that information.  We are
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          2  translating that information into other languages

          3  too.  But those sorts of laws, we will continue to

          4  enforce.

          5                 But on some of the consumer

          6  protection laws where we don't have the licensing

          7  hook, we look forward to working with you and your

          8  colleagues to educate people on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

         12  Reed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.  As Chair of the Consumer Affairs

         15  Committee, this is an issue that became apparent to

         16  me rather quickly in assuming the Chair that we had

         17  some concerns that were mutual with this

         18  Administration.  And in looking at what it is, I

         19  wanted to applaud the Chair of this Committee that

         20  she has reached out and asked my opinion, frankly,

         21  but also really wanted to hear from so many people,

         22  even within this rushed period of time, and I think

         23  looked at it rather comprehensively and came up with

         24  some very substantive concerns, and I think has

         25  showed a real profile, encouraged about stepping
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          2  forward with something where people have real

          3  trepidations.

          4                 I think the thing that perhaps in

          5  this that we overlook, Council Member Lopez, and

          6  others, is that, in fact, we're not changing any

          7  law, we're not adding any laws, so the violations

          8  remain the same, there are no new violations to

          9  businesses.  It is a mechanism for us to collect the

         10  fines.  So we're not, there is nothing new for

         11  people to learn.  The only thing, perhaps,

         12  businesses will learn is that it is more difficult

         13  to get away with it.

         14                 And I know many of you have been in

         15  stores and had consumers and constituents come to

         16  you and complain about problems. And we have gone,

         17  and I know, I have spoken with our Chair about this,

         18  and I have gone to the stores and said, you cannot

         19  do this, we're going to get you fined, we're going

         20  to put you out of business, and they laughed because

         21  we don't really have the tools to support our own

         22  constituents.

         23                 So I think the way we have addressed

         24  the genuine concerns of businesses to make sure that

         25  they understand this.  But I think it is important
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          2  for us to understand we're not imposing any new

          3  fines on any businesses, we're simply making, giving

          4  the Department a mechanism by which to actually get

          5  something cleared off the books, and we all like the

          6  idea of resolving something.            And so, but

          7  most importantly, this evening, I wanted to thank

          8  the Chair,  because this is an issue that could have

          9  been easily pushed aside with all the other issues

         10  of great significance that we're having to do in

         11  this budget time.

         12                 So thank you, and as the Chair of the

         13  Consumer Affairs, I will continue to support the

         14  concerns and make sure that we in our oversight

         15  hearings are addressing those concerns and hearing

         16  both from the businesses, that perhaps have been

         17  given summonses, but also from the Department to

         18  make sure they're living up the obligations that

         19  they have put forward today.  So thank you, Madam

         20  Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you, Council

         22  member. Council Member Liu.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Madam

         24  Chair, for giving me this brief time.  I actually

         25  just have a quick question about the amendments, one
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          2  of the amendments that were added to the original

          3  proposal, which is a rule or an amendment that

          4  attracts an already existing rule that requires the

          5  display of English signs?

          6                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  That has been

          7  in the General Business Law since 1909, and what

          8  this is suggesting is that we shift it to the

          9  Department of Consumer Affairs.  And it is actually

         10  a very simple rule that would say that a consumer

         11  who goes into a store and is not happy with that

         12  encounter, should be able to know what the name of

         13  the store and the proprietor is.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I understand the

         15  theory behind the law.  Is that a law that has been

         16  enforced in recent years, say the last 20 years?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So it would

         19  actually be a law that probably we would need some

         20  pretty intensive education on.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Well I think

         22  we not only need education, but I think it is

         23  important to remember that, I have to deploy my

         24  inspectors strategically every day.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Right.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  And again,

          3  what - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  You see I think

          5  that the problem that I have with complaint based

          6  systems of enforcement is that I think especially

          7  with a Department that I believe is very short

          8  staffed.  I think your Department does excellent

          9  work, the fact of the matter is that the Department

         10  is also short staffed. And what a complaint based

         11  system of enforcement results in is very selective

         12  enforcement, I believe.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  But we don't,

         14  we're not complaint based on the majority of the

         15  work we do.  In fact, as --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Oh, I'm just

         17  referring to this particular amendment that was

         18  added to the original proposal.  This is the first I

         19  found out about it, that is why I'm asking about

         20  this.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Again, I think

         22  that we are sensitive to concerns the communities

         23  might have about this.  We only have 80 inspectors,

         24  you're right.  We have a lot of obligations on those

         25  80 inspectors.  It is my job to uphold the law, but
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          2  it is also true that certain things take greater

          3  resources and more time.

          4                 So when we focus on, for instance,

          5  tobacco sales to minors, or prescription drug prices

          6  for seniors, or home improvement contractors, that

          7  takes up the majority of our time, because that is

          8  where the greatest harm is being done.  And you have

          9  my commitment that will be, continue to be our

         10  priority.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you.  If

         12  you are going to, at some point, make a very

         13  concerted effort to enforce this part of the law,

         14  that has not been enforced, under my understanding,

         15  it has not been enforced within the last 90 plus

         16  years, then I would very much like to help you

         17  implement that in a way that people understand the

         18  rules before they are fined.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Right, thank

         20  you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

         23  Gerson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just very

         25  briefly I want to underscore the point, my
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          2  colleague, Council Member Liu made and point out

          3  that it is precisely in such cases where we are in

          4  effect attempting to effectuate a change and

          5  practice, longstanding practice, that the process of

          6  education, the process of community outreach is ever

          7  so important.  And so I commend the procedures, I'm

          8  just a little worried that nine months on a Citywide

          9  basis might not even be long enough, so especially

         10  with some significant changes in practice, that is,

         11  Council Member Liu pointed out, have long persisted.

         12

         13                 So I would urge you to be open on a

         14  community by community basis for reasonable

         15  extensions in cooperation with the community

         16  organizations and their elected officials.

         17                 And I just want to, precisely for

         18  this reason, on behalf of my district, which

         19  includes Chinatown and significant parts of the

         20  Lower East Side and Little Italy, thank the Chair of

         21  this Committee, Chair Baez, for your attention to

         22  and concern about the needs, and the legitimate

         23  concerns of our small business community, especially

         24  as pointed out in these difficult times.  We really,

         25  really, appreciate your attention and your efforts,
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          2  and commend you for your leadership.

          3                 Thank you very much, and thank you,

          4  Commissioner. I join my colleagues in looking

          5  forward to working with you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  And thank you,

          7  we note your concern, thanks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Does anyone have

          9  any more questions?  Any more questions?  No.  Thank

         10  you very much, Commissioner.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DYKSTRA:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  We will now hear

         14  from Peter Marangalo (phonetic), and William

         15  Kwasnicki (phonetic), Corrections.

         16                 Also, we would like to recognize

         17  Minority Leader, Council Member Oddo, Council Member

         18  Golden, and Council Member Jackson.

         19                 Please identify yourself for the

         20  record?

         21                 MR. KWASNICKI:  Good evening.  My

         22  name is William Kwasnicki.  I'm the Legislative

         23  Chairman for the Correction Officers' Benevolent

         24  Association.

         25                 MR. MARANGALO:  Good evening.  My
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          2  name is Peter Marangalo, President of the Correction

          3  Captains of the Correction Department.

          4                 MR. KWASNICKI:  All right, I come

          5  before the City Council, today, requesting a Home

          6  Rule Message for Senate Bill 1544- A and Assembly

          7  Bill 2470- A.  This bill would help us to correct an

          8  inequity that has existed in the Correction

          9  Department since 1990.  It seems that Correction

         10  officers are the only uniformed force in the City of

         11  New York that is required to pay into their pension

         12  upon completion of their 20th year.  Not only is

         13  this a difference between Police Department, Fire

         14  Department and Correction Department, it is also an

         15  inequity in regards to Tier I, Tier II, and Tier III

         16  in the Correction Pension System themselves.

         17                 Last year, similar legislation was

         18  passed for the Sanitation Department correcting it

         19  for them, we're asking for the same assistance from

         20  the City Council now.

         21                 This bill will enable officers and

         22  superior officers that have 20 years or more on the

         23  job the ability to stay on and to assist new people

         24  coming on the job and learning the job better. It is

         25  more or less a retention enhancement, because right
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          2  now anybody with more than 20 years on the job, if

          3  they choose to stay around, they're being forced to

          4  keep on paying into their pension without really

          5  receiving a benefit that is equal to what they're

          6  paying in.  We pay the highest into the pension

          7  system then of any union in the City of New York.

          8                 I pay approximately close to 8.11

          9  percent of my salary goes into my pension.  And they

         10  made legislation which reduced the 3 percent factor

         11  last year in regards to the pension enhancer bill,

         12  but I still have to pay an additional 5.11 percent

         13  because I have over 20 years on the job.  If I wish

         14  to stay on the job, I have to keep on continuing

         15  paying, whereas no other uniformed force in the City

         16  of New York is required to do so.

         17                 All I'm asking for is just an equal

         18  playing field with the rest of the unions.

         19                 MR. MARANGALO:  Yes, and I would like

         20  to echo a lot of the similar thoughts.  I have been

         21  a member of the Correction Department for 30 years.

         22  I have been the President for the Correction

         23  Captains for the last 13.  I'm a Tier I Correction

         24  Captain, so I stopped paying into my pension after

         25  20 years, which is the way the pension system always
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          2  was.

          3                 And suffice it to say, the men and

          4  women that work in the Correction Department, as I

          5  have always termed them, have been the out- of-

          6  sight, out- of- mind people that work a very

          7  dangerous job, and at the very least, should have

          8  the ability to receive what other uniformed members

          9  have.

         10                 Over the diligent work of the

         11  Correction officers and Correction Captains, and the

         12  work from the City Council over the years, you have

         13  been very helpful to us, in allowing us to start to

         14  achieve equity with our counterparts in the Police

         15  and Fire.  Anyone who has ever visited the jail,

         16  knows it is not a very nice place to be working in,

         17  and we have never asked for more than the other

         18  uniformed forces.  We just ask to be included as

         19  their equals.   And it has been a long time coming,

         20  and like I said, again, where members of the City

         21  Council have been very helpful in looking at those

         22  inequities.

         23                 It does pose a hardship, and as a 30-

         24  year veteran of the Department, one of the problems

         25  we're facing right now, is because that they have to
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          2  continue to pay an extraordinary amount, unlike in

          3  Police and Fire, we are losing qualified, senior

          4  tenure people.  And the age of our people, they're

          5  leaving at a very young age, they're leaving in the

          6  ages of 40, and the Department is suffering.  We're

          7  losing the ability of qualified men and women that

          8  are going to be the leaders of the Correction

          9  Department in the years to come, because they're

         10  leaving because it does not make sense to be paying

         11  an additional $200 a paycheck into a pension that

         12  they have already hit the 20- year retirement.

         13                 So once again as my colleague has

         14  said, I would just, as a 30- year veteran I can

         15  attest to you that I'm equally concerned as to what

         16  happens in the Department long after I'm gone, and I

         17  think we owe it to the men and women who perform a

         18  very dangerous job to at least give them equity with

         19  their counterparts in PD, and we appreciate your

         20  help in doing so.

         21                 Thank you for this opportunity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.  Do we

         23  have any questions?  Thank you very much.

         24                 I would also like to recognize

         25  Council Member Lanza and Council Member Provenzano
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          2  who are in the audience.

          3                 We will now be hearing testimony from

          4  John Crotty, the Mayor's Office, regarding the

          5  Domestic Partnership Bill.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Madam Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  If I could

          9  just take this moment while we're waiting for Mr.

         10  Crotty to come across the hallway, I just wanted to

         11  express how appreciative I am of the work you have

         12  done on this issue of Domestic Partnership.  And I

         13  think I speak for myself and the other members, all

         14  of the members particularly Council Member Lopez and

         15  Council Member Reed in just giving you, I wish I was

         16  a little more awake because then I would be more

         17  articulate and more clearly able to express what

         18  really tremendous work you have done on this issue.

         19                 You know frequently in government

         20  politics we make promises that we will work hard to

         21  make something happen.  But rarely ever before have

         22  I seen someone make a promise and so quickly follow

         23  through with a promise, and it was not an easy

         24  promise to fulfill, to get a piece of legislation

         25  that is primarily a concern of lesbian and gay
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          2  community sponsored in the Senate and the Assembly,

          3  to get the Administration to support, which they had

          4  not been to begin with.  So I cannot really express

          5  strongly enough what friend you are to the lesbian,

          6  gay, bisexual and transgender community in New York

          7  City and what outstanding work you have done.      And

          8  I'm ending perfectly on time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you very

         10  much.  Please identify yourself for the record?

         11                 MR. CROTTY:  My name is John Crotty.

         12  I'm the Director of City Legislative Affairs.

         13                 MR. TRUMPER:  Felix Trumper

         14  (phonetic), Deputy Director of City Legislative

         15  Affairs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  I would like to

         17  take this opportunity to thank the Administration in

         18  helping myself and my colleagues with the Domestic

         19  Partnership Bill.  Working together we were

         20  instrumental in getting it in the Assembly and in

         21  the Senate. So I want to start off by sincerely

         22  thanking you, because this is a very important

         23  issue, and you know, we have been talking on this

         24  all day back and forth, and we have other concerns

         25  that we will get into, but I wanted to start off by
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          2  thanking the Administration for their support

          3  regarding the Domestic Partnership Bill.

          4                 MR. CROTTY:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  John, I would like

          6  for you to just go into some of the discussions we

          7  have been having regarding the Domestic Partnership,

          8  and my concern is that I want an assurance that this

          9  bill was going to  - -  Are you okay, are you all

         10  right?  (laughing).

         11                 MR. CROTTY:  I haven't even answered

         12  yet.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Order.  What I

         14  wanted and I want it on the record that the

         15  Administration will continue to work closely with

         16  me, and your assurance that this Domestic

         17  Partnership Bill will go through.

         18                 MR. CROTTY:  As you know,

         19  Councilwoman, back when we started talking about

         20  this issue about, I forget how long ago, 30 plus

         21  days ago, we had some issues around this bill in

         22  terms of how many people to cover, where it was, but

         23  the intent was always to do the right thing by the

         24  people who were in this particular situation.

         25                 So we helped the Chairwoman, amongst
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          2  others write this bill, we aided in writing that

          3  bill, and we intend to stand behind that commitment

          4  to not only ensure passage, and we will enter in

          5  Blue Backs tomorrow to sort of show our further

          6  support. And we have already asked Albany to help

          7  pass this, and there is good reason to believe that

          8  this will come out of the Senate, and we have been

          9  told the Assembly is optimistic about passing this

         10  as well.  So I think all in all that is a good

         11  thing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Also because this

         13  does not cover the individuals from September 10th,

         14  actually, will the Administration support the

         15  similar Garumba Bill to any registered domestic

         16  partner who comes forward prior to when this bill is

         17  passed, since September 10th?

         18                 MR. CROTTY:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  And also there was

         20  another issue regarding an individual Vian

         21  (phonetic) Awayva (phonetic) who we have also been

         22  trying to assist, whose husband also passed on 9/11.

         23  And we spoke also about the Vian Awayva family, and

         24  just for clarification to my colleagues, the

         25  Administration also assured me that we will continue
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          2  to work together and do the research necessary to

          3  help this family.  And if this individual, after

          4  research, we find that this individual is indeed a

          5  registered domestic partner, that she will also be

          6  afforded the surviving benefits as in the Garumba

          7  Bill.

          8                 MR. CROTTY:  The reason we have

          9  entered the legislation, now supporting the

         10  legislation is because people, potentially people

         11  like Mrs. Vian Awayva fall into the same category

         12  that - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Can you talk up?

         14                 MR. CROTTY:  People who are like

         15  Garumba, who perhaps Mrs. Vian Awayva is one of

         16  them.  We have committed to working on that going

         17  forward, and the bill would capture them as well, so

         18  from September 10th on.  And we have already been

         19  helpful in determining some of the information, and

         20  we will continue to work to try to get as much

         21  information as we have available on this case, to

         22  the extent that she falls in the same category, we

         23  would have no problem supporting her and getting

         24  similar benefits as did Garumba.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  And just for the
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          2  record, we also spoke about Administration providing

          3  whatever documentation you had to Victor Robles, so

          4  he can also do research regarding this family.

          5                 MR. CROTTY:  That is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

          7  Lopez, do you have any questions?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just, again,

          9  I am in disbelief in how fast Council Member Baez

         10  was able to resolve this problem.  But I must say

         11  and I have to admit, things has changed in the City,

         12  and I have to say, we have a better Mayor in place.

         13  I don't think this would have happened as fast it

         14  has happened if Mayor Bloomberg wouldn't have been

         15  willing to work with this.

         16                 And Council Member Baez, I mean, you

         17  are my partner. I am absolutely impressed with the

         18  work that you had done, and I think that this

         19  Committee, has a whole, should feel extremely,

         20  extremely proud of the Chair that you have.

         21                 I want to thank the Administration

         22  for what they had done.  And I want to thank you

         23  because when the Garumba Bill came in here, I was in

         24  disbelief because I knew of the Vian Awayva family

         25  and I knew about firefighters that died on September
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          2  11th, whose benefits were denied.  Then with this

          3  situation, I feel you are going to resolve this

          4  issue, and at the same time, I have to congratulate

          5  the Administration for recognizing that domestic

          6  partnership rights are as important as the rights of

          7  any couple that get married or any other kind of

          8  activity that they get married.

          9                 Thank you very much, and thank you,

         10  Madam Chair. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you, thank

         12  you.  Council Member Monserrate.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         14  you, Madam Chair. I want to echo the words of my

         15  colleague, Ms. Lopez, in regards to your leadership,

         16  and also to extend an olive branch to the Mayor's

         17  Administration and say thank you also for

         18  participating in this bill.

         19                 My only concern is that, as I

         20  understand it, the bill will cover folks from the

         21  day the bill is signed into law going forward.  And

         22  my concerns are you stated September 10th, but as a

         23  going back analyzing case by case, is that correct,

         24  or am I incorrect with the time lines?

         25                 MR. CROTTY:  I think September 10th
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          2  was the original draft of the bill, so that was sort

          3  of the date we were using when talking with the

          4  Chairwoman about how we would work going forward.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  But we

          6  have a commitment from Administration that we will

          7  be looking at cases that predate the signing of this

          8  bill into law; is that correct, or is that not

          9  correct?

         10                 MR. CROTTY:  This bill, if everything

         11  goes well, will be signed at some point in the

         12  future, say 30 days, I don't know how Albany works

         13  well enough to know what day it would be signed.

         14                 What the commitment to the

         15  Chairperson was, on behalf of the Administration,

         16  was to identify people who are in Garumba type

         17  scenarios and extend them the same type benefit that

         18  we were able to extend to Garumba.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.

         20                 MR. CROTTY:  We didn't want to go

         21  back and indefinite period of time, however.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right, I

         23  understand.

         24                 MR. CROTTY:  And this bill would

         25  capture everyone, I believe, from, Jim can speak to
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          2  it better than I can, in terms of dates.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I just

          4  wanted to be clear, because as I remember from the

          5  hearing the passing of the Garumba was actually

          6  before September 10th, yes - -

          7                 MR. CROTTY:  It was August 27th.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So it was

          9  a concern, I just wanted to make sure that we have

         10  honest dialogue and that we're going to be working

         11  together in partnership to ensure that anyone that

         12  was impacted perhaps before this, we can do the

         13  equal for.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

         16  Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just wanted

         18  to add to my comments, also to extend my

         19  appreciation to the Mayor's Office and Legislative

         20  Affairs for working so hard and so closely with the

         21  Chair following the hearing we had on the Garumba

         22  Bill, and for moving forward in your position on

         23  this bill in generally, and for making a commitment

         24  to work aggressively in Albany tomorrow, as well as

         25  to do the follow- up individual pieces of
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          2  legislation, if they're necessary.  So if you could

          3  convey those thanks to Commissioner Hanley and to

          4  all the others that were involved that would be

          5  great.

          6                 And I also want to, if I may, single

          7  out the work of some of the staff people who have

          8  been involved with this, Jim Caras and Frank

          9  Tramontano, who have done really terrific work

         10  making sure this issue did not get lost in the

         11  budget.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you, Council

         13  member. Council Member Dilan.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Just quickly I

         15  want to add my two cents of thanks to the

         16  Administration and to yourself, Chairperson Baez.  I

         17  think everyone is clear that this is a home run for

         18  the gay and lesbian community.  But I'm not sure

         19  that it gets out there, that this also too is a home

         20  run for the heterosexual community in Latino

         21  culture, if a man and a woman live together for a

         22  certain amount of years and they're not married,

         23  they're considered, you know, husband and wife, in

         24  my eyes, and I think that this is a home run, and I

         25  just wanted to offer my gratitude.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

          4  Boyland.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  As Chair of

          6  the Women's Issues Committee I think this is key.

          7  What Maria has done today is sort of put the nail in

          8  the coffin, and also John and Felix.  And we trust

          9  Felix because he has handled our conflict of

         10  interest papers for quite some time in the City

         11  Council, so we know he knows a lot more than most

         12  people do.

         13                 But Maria, because, Madam Chair, what

         14  you have done has a set a precedence in the City of

         15  New York.  One being that women have lived usually

         16  longer than their counterparts, and to have some

         17  benefits to continue to take care of their families

         18  and to move forward, because they are becoming the

         19  heads of most families.  I think this sets a

         20  precedence that is going to echo throughout the City

         21  and throughout the United States.  So thank you,

         22  Madam Chairperson, and you make women very proud

         23  today.

         24                 MR. CROTTY:  We may have - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Any more
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          2  questions?  Council Member Oddo.

          3                 MR. CROTTY:  We may have Felix

          4  testify at all future hearings, I'm sitting next to

          5  whoever, he is going.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Council Member

          7  Oddo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Remember I

         10  know your mother.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Go ahead, I'm

         12  sorry.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.  I just have one quick question for Mr.

         15  Crotty.  Mr. Crotty, are you now or have you ever

         16  been a member of the Communist Party? (laughter).

         17                 MR. CROTTY:  Under advice of my

         18  attorney, I cannot answer that question at this

         19  time.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Well in light

         21  of the late hour, I won't follow- up with this, or

         22  maybe a little bit later at Nathan Hales.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Any more

         24  questions?  No.  Okay, thank you very much.

         25                 MR. CROTTY:  Thank you, again.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Thank you.

          3                 MR. TRUMPER:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. CARAS:  Just a couple of things

          5  for the record before the Clerk calls the vote.

          6  We're adding Council Members Monserrate and Boyland

          7  to the Domestic Partner SLR.  Council Member Sears

          8  was inadvertently omitted from SLR 53, her name

          9  should appear on that, and we are adding Council

         10  Member Sears to the Preconsidered SLR on the heart

         11  bill; and Council Member Addabbo's name is being

         12  added to the Preconsidered SLR on the variable

         13  supplement benefits.

         14                 We're now voting on all items on both

         15  of your large packets, with the exception of the

         16  Omnibus Revenue Bill, which is Item No. 7 of the

         17  large agenda, as well as SLR 79, Mayor's Message

         18  180, and the Preconsidered SLR on the Domestic

         19  Partnership Accidental Death Benefits.  Those three

         20  items were handed out individually, so 23 items in

         21  total.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Will the Clerk

         23  call the roll, please?

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Rivera.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Aye to all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I vote aye on

          8  all with the exception, and don't know the SLR

          9  number right now, but it's the Senate 7319- A,

         10  Assembly 11201- A, which I abstain, the DCA bill.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Madam Chair,

         13  may I, very briefly, be excused to explain my vote?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I share

         16  Council Member Dilan's reservations about the DCA

         17  bill.  And I think there are things in it that we

         18  may have to come back and fix as time goes on. But I

         19  also share my colleagues confidence and appreciation

         20  for what you have done in negotiating that bill in

         21  trying to protect the small business owners

         22  throughout the City of New York.  And so with that

         23  trust, I am going to vote aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  McMahon.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Aye on all.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Monserrate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Madam

          4  Chair, I also want to express my concerns about the

          5  DCA bill, and I'm going to stand with my colleague,

          6  Dilan, in abstaining my vote on that issue, and aye

          7  on all.  And I also want to, again, salute you on

          8  for your leadership.  Thank you very much

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Golden.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN:  Aye on all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BAEZ:  Meeting is

         14  recessed until tomorrow morning.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 9 in the

         16  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         17  with the exception of the DCA Bill, by a vote of 7

         18  in the affirmative, 0 in the negative, and 2

         19  abstentions, all items are adopted and please sign

         20  the reports.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 p.m.)

         22
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